
 

ADDENDUM 1 

RFP AP 68-19 – Janitorial Services at the Destin-Fort Walton Beach Airport (VPS) 

August 8, 2019 

This addendum is to provide answers to questions from vendors. 

 

The following change has been made to the scope of services to include the following: 

Clean taxi queuing area restrooms daily and empty trash 

 
1. Referencing Page 69, Exhibit D Labor Positions, please clarify if the specification call for 

seven days per week service?  If so, please advise as to the additional labor required for 
the other two days, e.g. each position is listed for 40 hours per week, when in fact it will 
require 56 hours. 
What was outlined in the RFP were the positions/titles of the positions and the fact that 
we are looking at primarily full time equivalents. The proposers are to build the models 
and staffing requirements as they deem necessary to fulfill the contract. Whether that 
includes additional full time positions or a combination of part time positions to fill the 
16 hour gap, that is the responsibility of the proposer to provide.  

2. Is the requirement for three shifts, seven days a week? Yes, that is correct, the level of 
 staffing to accomplish the required tasks for each shift should be proposed by the potential 
 vendor. 

3. Would the authority be willing to provide an area to have a washer/dryer?  No 

4. How many holidays does the airport honor for its staff?  The performance under this 
 contract will be required 365 days a year.  The airport does not close for any 
 holidays.  The holidays the County offices observe are as follows:   

 Christmas Eve  Labor Day 

 Christmas Day  Veteran’s Day 

 New Year’s Day Thanksgiving 

 MLK Day  Friday after Thanksgiving 



 Memorial Day 

 Independence Day 

5. Could you please provide a list of the current consumable products?   See attached. 

6. Could you please provide the current annual spend on consumables? These are reported 
 to us as cost, without any mark-up.  

FY 2017 Actual – $82,604 
FY 2018 Actual – $102,713 
FY 2019 Budget - $117,000 (actual will likely fall near $130,000) 
 

7. What is the current staffing model per shift?  See attached.  ** Please note that the 
expectations of the successful proposer are different, as the current staffing model does 
not necessarily meet the needs of the airport in the most efficient and effective manner. 

8. Who is responsible for dusting above 8 feet and how often? (Window Sills, Light 
Fixtures, Air Ducts/Returns, Horizontal Ledges)  The vendor should consider those as 
needed, minimum of annually.   If lifts are needed, coordinate with Airport Maintenance.   

9. During which shift/hours should the exterior window cleaning be done?  No specific 
shift. 

10. Will successful respondent have access to airport lifts for glass cleaning/dusting?  Yes, 
but only in coordination with Airport Maintenance.   

11. Can alternate responses be submitted alongside a response to the original RFP?  Any 
suggestions on alternate methods/staffing/equipment should be included in the proposal.  

12. Would the airport consider using air hand-dryers in restrooms where applicable?  No. 

13. What is the airports preferred plan of action when compactor/dumpsters are filled and not 
emptied for extended periods of time? Recommend more accommodations here.  Please 
contact AOC/Maintenance Supervisor if this is an issue.  

14. We assume the agreement for servicing Concourse C will be negotiated in the future with 
the successful respondent leading up to the opening?  Yes 

15. Under Section G, after a Manager/Supervisor performs daily inspections on the form 
provided by the county, who is responsible for the weekly summary to the Airports 
Director? The respondents Manager/Supervisor or the Airports designee?   The vendor’s 
manager/supervisor will report daily to the Airports Maintenance Supervisor who will 
communicate to the Airports Deputy Director and/or other senior management, as 
applicable.          



 16.  Please confirm that deadlines are based on Central Daylight Time.  Yes 

 
17.   Please advise on where the Bid Security and Performance Guarantee should be inserted.        

Bid Security should be included with the other required forms that will accompany your 
response.  Performance Guarantee will only be required from the successful proposer.  

 
  

 

18.   In this requirement "Respondents shall include a detailed description of how they 
anticipate the recruitment of management and staff to complete the janitorial services 
outlined.  Information shall include sourcing, training methodologies, and a timeline for 
staffing." Please expand on what you would like for the "timeline for staffing". When 
will the manager be selected and hired?  When will you be fully staffed, per your 
proposed staffing plan, and have the hiring process, training and badging completed?  
We would expect that you are fully staffed no later than 30 days from contract execution 
date.  

 

   

19.  Please confirm that the 'benefits program' is the same as the 'benefit package' referenced 
in this requirement: "Benefit programs for each position shall be identified along with a 
detail of whether the positions are full time or part time and what benefit package is 
included." If not, please expand on what you are looking for in this requirement.  Yes, 
intended to be the same. 

 

   

20.  Please confirm whether or not this requirement "Respondents shall outline in detail the 
proposed operations, maintenance and repair plan, how the plan is monitored and 
managed, resources required." is pertaining to equipment. If not, please advise on what it 
is in reference to.  Yes, pertaining to equipment.  

 

 

21.  The RFP asks us to submit detailed information about our janitorial program, including a 
staffing plan, transition plan, operations plan, maintenance and repair plan, equipment, 
chemical and supply lists, org chart, resumes, letters of credit, etc. As some of these 
documents can be lengthy in pages, would you consider NOT counting them against the 
40-page limit? If so, would it be possible to include them at the end in an "Appendix" 
section.  An appendix section is acceptable for resumes, letters of credit and other 
County required forms.   Your response, including all plans and lists mentioned above, 
should fall within the 40 page limit.   

  

 
22.   A Bid Bond in the amount of $5,000 will be required. Does the County have its own 

required bid bond form or is a surety company’s bid bond form acceptable?  No, please 
use a form provided by a surety company. 

 

 

23.   A Performance Bond in the amount of 50% of the projected annual cost submitted in 
the proposal will be required of the successful Proposer. Does the County have its own 
required performance bond form? If so, can they provide a copy prior to the bid 
opening date? If you do not have a required form, is a surety company’s annual 
performance bond be acceptable? No, please use a form provided by a surety company. 



  

 
24.   Do you require the page 56 of 69 to be included in our response?  No, that is just the 

final page of the example contract.   
 

 

25.   On page 25 of 69, the list of additional required documents states that we should 
include the Government Debarment & Suspension form but there is none attached. If 
this is required, please provide a copy of the form.  Please see attached form to return 
with your proposal. 

 

 
26.   Please advise on where the forms should be inserted in the order of our response. If 

there is no preference, would it be possible to insert into an "Appendix" section?  Yes, 
an appendix section to include all the forms is acceptable.  

 

 

 

Proposals due date remains unchanged and is scheduled for: August 30, 2019 at 3:00 P.M. 
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